
 

  

 
AGENDA FOR PUBLIC MEETING 

 
 

DATE: Monday, May 15, 2023 at 6:00pm 

LOCATION:  HYBRID: Zoom Meeting / Stevenson Community Library;  

 Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7248898607 or https://zoom.us/join 

 Meeting ID: 724 889 8607: Passcode: 136299 Or Dial: 206-337-9723 

   
6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting  

1. Call to Order 

2. Agenda Approval ACTION 

3. Chair Announcements INFORMATION 

4. Public Comments 

5. Executive Session: RCW 42.30.110 (1) – Personnel and Publicly Bid Contracts 

6. Reports: INFORMATION 
4.1 Duncan Brown, PFM Financial Advisors, Update - Facility financing options 
4.2 Summer @ Your Library: Kelsey Hudson, Youth Outreach and Program Coordinator 
4.3 Stevenson Community Library Branch Report: David Wyatt, Branch Manager 
4.4 March 2023 Financial Statements: Attar Bhangal, Finance Manager 
4.5 FVRL Foundation Report: Rick Smithrud, Foundation Director 

 
7. Consent Agenda ACTION 

5.1 Minutes Approval: April 17, 2023 meeting 
5.2 FVRL Expenditures Approval: Reviewed by Megan Dugan 
 

8. Business 
6.1 Finance Committee 

     a. Fee forgiveness for minors at 18 – Resolution 2023-11 ACTION 
     b. Ridgefield Tax Increment Financing Area INFORMATION 

6.2 Facilities Committee  
a. Woodland Community Library INFORMATION 
b. Grand Blvd. – Foundation INFORMATION 
c. Right of First Refusal Limited Waiver – Resolution 2023-12 ACTION 

6.3 Policy Committee  
a. Personnel Handbook (Second reading) DISCUSSION 
b. Foundation Policy  DISCUSSION 

6.4 New Business  
a.  Media Communications, Tak Kendrick, Director  DISCUSSION 
     Communications and Marketing 

 b. Public Comments at Board Meetings  DISCUSSION 
 c. Executive Director search, Lee Strehlow, Director Human Resources INFORMATION 
   

9. Board Comments 

10. Setting of next regular meeting – Tuesday, June 20, 2023 (Hybrid/Goldendale Community Library) 

11. Adjournment 

Page 1 of 92

https://zoom.us/join
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7248898607%09


May 2023 - ORGANIZATIONAL REPORT

1. Capital Projects
● Woodland Community Library

○ 50% Construction Drawing Review
○ Love Your Library fundraiser
○ Groundbreaking planned 06/17/23

● Grand Boulevard building
○ Painting completed
○ Electrical and low voltage complete
○ HVAC complete
○ Ceiling and lighting started

2. Executive Director’s Highlights: April 17 to May 15, 2023
● Branch Managers meeting
● City of Vancouver - parking discussion
● Supervisor’s meeting
● City of Ridgefield - tax increment finance area
● City of Woodland - intergovernmental exchange of property
● Grand Blvd. Operations Center - Owner/Architect/Contractor meetings
● Public Libraries of Washington Legislative Committee
● Evergreen School Board meeting
● Policy Committee Meeting
● Furniture review - Grand Blvd.
● Grand Boulevard - Q&A
● Quarterly staff reviews
● Finance Committee Meeting
● Public Libraries of Washington
● Woodland subdivision of property
● New Employee Orientation
● Hire temporary Public Services Director
● District Managers meeting
● Snap Schedule 365 demo
● Second quarter Admin retreat
● Pai Trued retirement
● Woodland Library signage discussion
● Board finance review
● City of Washougal
● Washington State Library annual report filing
● Medical insurance review with Kaiser Permanente

Page 2 of 92



 APRIL BRANCH STRATEGIC PRIORITY HIGHLIGHTS 
 May 15, 2023 

 EQUITY 

 ●  WSV hosted the first of our  Coming to America  programs  which was very successful. This program 
 was made possible due to a grant we received from The Yiddish Book Center, in 2019. Due to the 
 pandemic we are finally able to host these discussions on many of the struggles and issues immigrants 
 face. 

 ●  From Battle Ground:  A patron stopped by the circ desk  and told staff she had attended an 
 “Immigration 101”  program the library held in September  of last year. She wanted to thank 
 the library for the presentation as she found it helpful and she was having her naturalization 
 ceremony to become a US citizen the following week. 

 ●  The Skamania County/West Klickitat bookmobile  continues  to make weekly stops at the  White 
 Salmon Fishing Access Site.  Bookmobile staff continue  to work towards establishing 
 relationships with the patrons at this location. Some patrons from these stops are coming into 
 the library more frequently. 

 ●  ST, GD, and WSV all attended a training called  Bridges  out of Poverty,  which was hosted by a partner 
 organization called People for People. People for People is a job skill development organization that 
 has locations  in the Columbia River Gorge. 

 CONNECTIONS 

 ●  Cascade Park and White Salmon Valley Community libraries both host very successful  teen 
 programs.  As we head into Summer at Your Library,  making connections with teens is critical 
 in getting teen participation in our programs and reading challenges. WA is also working on 
 teen engagement, through a partnership with  Washougal  High School.  Zoe has been 
 spending some time at the school during the lunch hours. Most recently she brought the button 
 maker with her to get the kids engaged. 

 ●  During the month of April, the  Yale Valley Library  welcomed 715+ patrons  which is up a bit 
 from last month.  (Yahoo!) 🙂 

 ●  Local author Michael Beug gave a talk at the Goldendale Community Library, about local 
 mushroom hunting,  including that some mushrooms can  be used like felt, such as for the hat 
 he was wearing (yes, the hat is made from a mushroom). 

 1 
Page 3 of 92



 ●  Washougal hosted a  Spring Break Week of Fun  with an  activity each day of spring break. 
 Activities included beading and scratch art, simple felt sewing, a fossil dig, legos, and spring 
 themed crafts. 

 PARTNERSHIPS 
 ●  Both the  YMCA Gentle Strength and Stretch  class and  the School Age Art Fun program 

 YMCA  staff lead are going very well. On April 29 we  partnered to put on a  Healthy Kids  event. 
 YMCA staff and library staff set-up outside activities for children, but the event also included 
 YMCA partners sharing information in the Community Room, a LEGO table in the 
 pass-through, a self-serve Art Bar from the library, and vision testing done by the Ridgefield 
 LIONS Club. Super fun event. Partners need to 

 2 
Page 4 of 92



 promote more fully next year. 

 ●  Jeanne Androvich and Sean McGill met with Kristen Riggs, a Board Member of  Ridgefield 
 Main Street  , to coordinate activities for the  Ridgefield  Community Library’s 2nd birthday 
 a  nd Main Street Day on July 14. Main Street activities  will be held at Overlook Park from 11-2. 
 Library activities will be at Davis Park from 12-2. 

 ●  Staff attended the  La Center Elementary School’s “Kindy  Cub Night”  open house. I took 
 some DIY craft bag activities, bookmarks, and talked to families about the library and getting 
 their kids library cards (most of them already had cards!). 

 ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE 

 From  , VM Brandon Cruz (he-him)

 I want to express my immense gratitude to everyone who assisted us in resolving our staffing 
 problems towards the end of the month. Keelie and Kelsey were instrumental in filling in as 
 PIC. The remarkable support from numerous substitutes and other branches ensured the 
 branch's seamless operation and provided my staff with much-needed assistance, affirming 
 that we are one unified system.  Thank you 

 3 
Page 5 of 92

mailto:bcruz@fvrl.org


 

  

 

 

 
 
 

  

Many thanks to the wonderful Foundation sponsors who are helping to 
support the 2023 Summer at Your Library program!   

 
 

Great News! 
 

• The Love Your Library fundraiser for the new Woodland Community Library raised over 
$26,000 for the building fund. 

• The Friends of Cascade Park Community Library transferred $10,000 to their investment 
account. 

• The Foundation’s partnership with ThriftBooks generated over $4,400 in revenue in April from 
the online sale of used books.  

• An anonymous donor has reserved the recognition rights (valued at $3,000) to the Children’s 
Area Reading Nook in the new Washougal Community Library. 

• The Foundation received an unrestricted $2,500 donation from a donor-advised fund. 

Vol. 15.5: May 2023 

Page 6 of 92



Upcoming Events 

 

Monday, May 15 

FVRL Trustee Meeting 

Hybrid: Stevenson Community 

Library and Zoom 

 6:00pm–8:00pm  

 

Monday, May 29 

All libraries will be closed in 

observance of Memorial Day 

 

Thursday, June 1 

FVRL Foundation Board Meeting 

Via Zoom 

3:00pm–4:00pm 

 

Saturday, June 3 

Ridgefield Friends Book Sale 

Ridgefield Community Library 

10:00am–3:00pm 

 

Friday and Saturday, June 16–17, 

Woodland Friends Book Sale 

411 Lakeshore Dr, Woodland 

10:00am–4:00pm both days 

 

Monday, June 19 

All libraries will be closed in 

observance of Juneteenth 

 

 

 
Building Campaigns and 

Cornerstone Pledges 
 

Washougal has 41 Cornerstones,  
1 Stepping Stone, 
 and 4 Keystones. 

 
Woodland has 35 Cornerstones,  

5 Stepping Stones, 8 Keystones, and 
6 Capstones. 

 
*Please note: some Cornerstones have 

graduated to Stepping Stones, which is why 
some Cornerstone totals have decreased. 

 
How Board Members Can Help 

 
–Spread the word about the Fred 

Meyer Rewards program: 
fredmeyer.com/i/community/communi

ty-rewards 

 
 
 

Upcoming Book Sales: 
 

Ridgefield Friends Book Sale: 
Saturday, June 3  

Ridgefield Community Library 
10:00am–3:00pm  

 
Woodland Friends Book Sale: 

Friday and Saturday, June 16–17,  
411 Lakeshore Dr, Woodland 
10:00am–4:00pm both days 

 
The 2023 Revolutionary Reads program features 
Atomic Days: The Untold Story of the Most Toxic 

Place in America by Joshua Frank.  

 
 

Join us at the groundbreaking for the new 
Woodland Community Library on June 17! 

Page 7 of 92

https://www.fredmeyer.com/i/community/community-rewards
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/juneteenth-closure-0
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/memorial-day-closure-2
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/friends-ridgefield-community-library-used-book-sale-2
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/memorial-day-closure-2
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-48
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-48
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/friends-woodland-community-library-used-book-sale-2
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/friends-woodland-community-library-used-book-sale-2
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/juneteenth-closure-0
https://www.fredmeyer.com/i/community/community-rewards
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/friends-ridgefield-community-library-used-book-sale-2


UWO O GT"CV"VJ G"
NKDTCT[ "4245

UWO O GT"CV"VJ G"
NKDTCT[ "4245

Lwpg"37"/Cwi wuv"37"""~""""Hqt"Gxgt{ qpg#""""

Mgnug{ "J wf uqp
Rtqi tco "cpf "Qwvtgcej "
Eqqtf kpcvqt"hqt"[ qwvj

Mgnug{ "J wf uqp
Rtqi tco "cpf "Qwvtgcej "
Eqqtf kpcvqt"hqt"[ qwvj

Page 8 of 92



 April 2023 Strategic Plan Update 
 Stevenson & North Bonneville Community Libraries 

 Skamania County Bookmobile 

 FVRLibraries is committed to providing regular updates about our  2021-2024 Strategic 
 Plan  . 

 EQUITY 
 ●  Skamania County Bookmobile was on the road for most of the month. First time 

 checkouts were not available yet, but visits were 431 which is lower than last 
 month but average for April.  Weekly stops at the White Salmon Fishing Access 
 Site with the bookmobile continue establishing relationships with patrons. Some 
 patrons from these stops are coming into the library more frequently. 

 PARTNERSHIPS 
 ●  The all day Red/Blue workshop that Braver Angels partnered with us on, was 

 well attended, and fostered hard but civil conversations around politics. A 
 columbia river gorge chapter of Braver Angels may start, and host short skill 
 workshops in the coming year. 

 ●  Library Leaves in the Skamania County Pioneer continues to be published. 
 April’s article included an interview with the author of the Skamania County 
 Reads selection,  A Fire Story  , Brian Fies. Events  will be in May. 

 ●  Jeanean continues Learn and Play storytime at Stevenson Elementary School 
 with several community partners who provide crafts and after school snacks. 

 ●  One Community Health continues to send us at home COVID tests and N95s to 
 distribute to patrons. This may draw to a close as the emergency declaration 
 ends in May. 

 CONNECTIONS 

 ●  David continues to  attend the local Homeless Housing Council Meeting and 
 Interagency Meeting of Gorge non-profits, and is part of the council. 

Page 9 of 92

https://www.fvrl.org/strategic-priorities
https://www.fvrl.org/strategic-priorities


 ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE 
 ●  Two additional substitutes for Stevenson are fully trained. 
 ●  Lois transferred to Vancouver Mall Community Library, her position at Stevenson 

 has been posted internally as having a supervisor in training option. 
 ●  David attended the “Bridges out of Poverty” training at White Salmon Valley 

 Community Library. 

Page 10 of 92



Page 11 of 92



December 31, 2022 Ending Cash Balance $20,940,100
Year-to-date Revenue Received $2,214,242
Year-to-date Expenditures -$7,420,300

Add back Expenditures incurred but unpaid -$176,342

Cash Balance March 31, 2023 $15,557,700

January 1, 2023 Starting Cash Balance: $20,940,100
March 31, 2023 Ending Cash Balance: $15,557,700
Reserve Plan Objectives 1-5: -$12,040,426
Operational Reserve; should be a minimum of 17% of annual operational budget $3,517,274
(Variance occurs due to when property tax revenue is received)

Operational Reserve; should be a minimum of 17% of annual operational budget $3,517,274

Reserve Fund

     Objective 1 Capital Repairs and Maintenance $750,000

     Objective 2 Replacement Vehicles $98,380

     Objective 3 Capital Projects  
          Washougal (YTD expense $55,136) $2,992,678

          Woodland $2,415,536

         Grand Blvd. Remodel $2,800,000

         Brush Prairie $500,000

          Unrestricted Capital $519,306

     Objective 4 Innovation $100,000

     Objective 5 Budget Stabilization Fund 1,864,526

Total Reserve Plan Objectives 1-5 $12,040,426
Operational Fund > 60 to 90 days of annual operational budget $3,517,274

Cash Balance March 31, 2023 $15,557,700

Restatement of cash balance with cash reserve plan detail -

January 01, 2023 - December 31, 2023 Fiscal Year

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement Of Cash

For the Month Ending March 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

Restatement of cash balance with cash reserve plan summary -

Page 12 of 92



001311.10.01 25,300,000         1,833,185          1,969,041 7.78%
015311.10.02 690,000              34,027               43,741 6.34%
010311.10.03 1,315,000                      -                 21,206 1.61%
311.10.04 315,000                     64                 2,307 0.73%

Total Property Taxes 27,620,000         1,867,276          2,036,296 7.37%

Other Taxes
020312.10. Other General Tax                     25,000                      -                 22,283 89.13%
318.20 Leasehold Excise Tax 95,000                   905               31,545 33.21%

Total Other Taxes 120,000                   905               53,828 44.86%

Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts
030332.00 Federal in-lieu of Taxes 15,000                      -                   5,855 39.04%
035335.05 State Forest Boards 150,000                7,391               11,628 7.75%
045333.00 State Grants                     25,000                      -                         -   -
052338.7 Yale Valley Library Dist 180,000                      -                         -   0.00%
054338.72 Contracts - Clark County Jail 500                      -                         -   0.00%

Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts 370,500                7,391               17,483 4.72%

Charges for Services
080341.60 Equipment Use Fees 20,000                3,394                 7,908 39.54%
085347.21 Non-Resident Borrower Fee 6,000                   225                    734 12.23%

090347.90 Lost / Damaged Material Fee 25,000                   764                 1,778 7.11%
092347.50 Collection Agency Referral Fee 0                     30                    150 0.00%

Total Charges for Services 51,000                4,413               10,570 20.73%

Miscellaneous
095361.11 Investment Interest                   200,000              25,848               77,738 38.87%
105362.00 Rental Income                       1,000                      -                        39 3.91%
120367.10 Gifts/Contributions                     15,000                     18                    163 1.09%
122369.90 Library Friends Groups' Reimbursements                   300,000                1,135                 2,446 0.82%
369.90 Library Foundation Reimbursements                2,500,000                2,461                 3,579 0.14%

130369.40 Insurance Reimbursements                       2,500                7,000                 7,000 280.00%
135369.90 Miscellaneous                       2,500                   226                 2,988 119.53%
367.1 Private Grants                     50,000                      -                   1,153 2.31%

145369.90 Other Miscellaneous - E-Rate                   150,000                      -                         -   0.00%
395.00 Sale of Assets                     20,000                   473                    960 4.80%

150395.10 Proceeds from the Sale of Property 0                      -                         -   0.00%Total Miscellaneous 3,241,000              37,162               96,066 2.96%

Total Operating Revenue 31,402,500$           1,917,148        2,214,242         7.05%

Transfer in from Reserves 2,500,000$               -                   -                    0.00%

Total Revenues and Transfer from Reserve $            33,902,500         1,917,148          2,214,242 6.53%

March is the 3rd month of the fiscal 
year. Year-to-date budget percentages 
should be at 25.00%, representing 3/12 
months.

Property Taxes - Cowlitz
Property Taxes - Klickitat

 2023 Budget  
(Approved 12/22)

Property Taxes - Skamania

Jan.-Dec. 2023 Fiscal Year

Property Taxes
Property Taxes - Clark

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement Of Revenue - Calendar Year 2023

For the Month Ending March 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

 March 2023 
Revenues 

Year-to-Date 
Totals thru

 March 2023

Year - to - Date 
Annual Budget 

Percent

Page 13 of 92



0
1

12,750,000              941,104 2,968,831 23.28%

2,300,000              182,708 554,944 24.13%

240,000                20,758 62,607 26.09%

75,000                12,327 37,067 49.42%

1,324,725                95,858 301,882 22.79%

975,375                70,512 222,662 22.83%

100,000                  5,737 18,305 18.31%

27,785                  2,061 6,496 23.38%

0
1

10,000                       34 2,947 29.47%

17,802,885           1,331,099 4,175,741 23.46%

0
2

458,000                33,102 76,529 16.71%

0
2

250,000                17,973 37,317 14.93%

462,000                23,931 26,957 5.83%

300,000                50,816 96,579 32.19%

1,470,000              125,821 237,382 16.15%

0
0
3

1,903,500              181,946 374,758 19.69%

0
3

1,896,500              179,836 437,916 23.09%

3,800,000              361,782 812,674 21.39%

0
4

2,079,225              117,954 328,335 15.79%

0
4

410,000                36,884 120,895 29.49%

0
4

108,000                20,285 28,748 26.62%

0
4

30,000                        -   1,188 3.96%

0
4

560,000                38,555 130,028 23.22%

0
4

250,000                     716 7,263 2.91%

0
4

450,000                45,176 126,259 28.06%

0
4

870,000              133,517 176,072 20.24%

0
4

163,750                13,307 45,566 27.83%

0
4

3,640                     467 1,183 32.49%

4,924,615              406,860 965,537 19.61%

0
5

         300,000                        -                                   -   0.00%

0
5

      5,500,000              494,643                     1,186,197 21.57%

595.62            40,000                        -                                   -   0.00%

0
5

           65,000                41,900                          42,770 65.80%

      5,905,000              536,543                     1,228,967 20.81%

    33,902,500 2,762,105          7,420,300                   21.89%

March is the 3rd month of the fiscal year. Year-to-
date budget percentages should be at 25.00%, 
representing 3/12 months.

572.42

572.46

Other Charges & Services Subtotal:

Machinery & Equipment594.64

594.62

594.62

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Yale

Capital Outlay

Insurance

Advertising

572.49

572.50 Intergovernmental Services

Repairs & Maintenance572.48

Buildings / Owned

Jan.-Dec. 2023 Fiscal Year

572.45

572.34

Professional Services

Utilities

Misc / Dues / Printing / Other

Rentals / Leases

Training / Travel

Capital Outlay Subtotal:

Buildings / Non-Owned

572.47

572.44

Library Materials Subtotal:

Electronic Resources

Year to Date 
Annual Budget 

Percentage

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

572.24

572.22

572.30

Year-to-Date 
Totals thru

 March 2023
 March 2023 
Expenditures 

Personnel  

Supplies

Statement of Expenses - Calendar Year 2023

Wages 

For the Month Ending March 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

Unemployment Expense

572.25

572.25

572.24

Personnel Subtotal:

Benefit - Medical

Benefit - FICA

Benefit - PFML

Benefit - L & I - Workers Compensation

Benefit - Life, LTD, AD&D

572.39

Small Equipment (FF&E)

572.24

572.28

572.35

572.38

572.33 Professional Collection / Tech

Supplies & Small Equipmt/Tech Subtotal:

 2023 Budget  
(Approved 

12/22)

572.41

572.43

Other Services / Charges

Communications

Benefit - PERS

Library Books / Materials

572.21

Supplies

Bars

572.10

Benefit - Dental

Technology

Library Books & Materials

Description

Page 14 of 92



   

  

Public Meeting Minutes 
 

Date: April 17, 2023 

Time:  6:00 PM Regular Meeting 

Location: In Person:  1661 C. Street; Washougal, WA 98671  

 

Call to Order  

Chair Morgan, called the regular meeting to order. 

Attendees 

Board Members Present:  Kristy Morgan, Megan Dugan, Penny Love-Henslee, Marie Coffey, 
Vikram Kotwani, Mary Ann Duncan-Cole 
Board Members Excused: Olga Hodges 
Administrative Team: Executive Director, Amelia Shelley; Deputy Director, Mary Abler; 
Executive Assistant and Recorder, Rhonda Kay Calkins; Collection & Technology Services 
Director, Lynne Caldwell; Human Resources Director, Lee Strehlow; Guests: Washougal Branch 
Manager, Zoe Nash.  

6:00 PM 

Agenda Approval 

Motion: Penny Love-Henslee 
2nd: Megan Dugan 
The motion carried unanimously.  

6:00 PM 

Chair Announcements 
   

Public Comments      

• In support of DQSH 
o Katherine Gardener, Go GO, Katie Emerick, Justin, Jude, Quill Onstead, Jude, 

Amanda Stevets, Emily Hancock  
• Against DQSH 

o Gary Wilson, Mike Johnson, Dan Dunnger, Phil Kronebusch, Janna Meyer, Bob Liggett, 
Tiffany Heine, Gene Slagle, Alexis Staples, Dawn Seaver, Teresa Valentine, Mike 
Hartelgo, Chuck Miller, Rial 

• Support Equity Policy 
o Wendi 

• Censorship 
o Zatchmo,  

• Board Responsibilities 
o Jane Higgins, Doreen Turpen, Melissa  

6:01 PM 

Executive Session: RCW 42.30.110 (1g) - Personnel 

Adjured into Executive Session at 6:53 PM for 20 minutes 
Meeting Restarted at 7:17 PM 

 

Page 15 of 92



   

  

Reports               
 

Fleet and Facilities: Facilities and Fleet Director, Dave Josephson 

Update on library activities around the district including the way we conduct our courier 
schedules and routes. Working on updates to various buildings. Working on the move from OC 
to Grand with a scheduled move date of June and July. Woodland project is going up to bid 
soon.   

7:17PM 

Branch Report:  Washougal Community Library: Branch Manager, Zoe Nash 

Ms. Nash shared updates about Washougal Community library including moving to a new 
building. She discussed how the foundation and friends of Washougal are helping to raise funds 
for the new building. She also shared information on outreach projects. 

  

7:20 PM 

February Financial Statements: Ms. Shelley discussed February 2023 financial statements.  

  

7:26 PM 

Consent Agenda                                

Chair Morgan, asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Motion: Mary Ann Duncan-Cole 
2nd: Penny Love-Henslee 
Motion carried unanimously. 

7:38 PM 

FVRL Expenditure Approval: Reviewed by                       

Board member, Mary Ann Duncan-Cole attested that she reviewed the March expenditures and 
found them in order.  

7:38 PM 

Business – Information Only  
 

Personnel Handbook: Amelia Shelley 

Ms. Shelley presented the current and most recent version of the personnel handbook to the 
board.     

7:39 PM 

Foundation Policy: Amelia Shelley 

Ms. Shelley presented information on the Foundation’s relationship with FVRL. There was 
discussion on the relationship being codified in policy rather than solely through a 
memorandum of understanding.  

8:02 PM 

2023 Reserve Plan Review: Amelia Shelley      

Ms. Shelley presented information on the 2022 expenditures.   

8:35 PM 

Fine Forgiveness for Minors: Collections and Technology Services Director, Lynne Caldwell      

Director Caldwell presented information on account forgiveness to minors when they turn 18. 
 

8:38 PM 

Page 16 of 92



   

  

Personnel Committee: Marie Coffey      

Ms. Coffey presented information about upcoming Personnel Committee meeting items.   

8:42 PM 

Board Comments: 

Ms. Love-Henslee thanked Ms. Abler for her time with FVRL and the Board of Trustees.  

Ms. Dugan what is the plan for organizing public comment for the next meeting or our 
transition plan? Ms. Abler stated there will be a plan moving forward.  

Ms. Morgan thanks Ms. Nash for hosting the board meeting.  

8:44 PM 

Setting of next regular meeting: Monday, May 15, 2023 (Stevenson Community Library/Zoom)  

Motion to adjourn meeting  

Moved: Mary Ann Duncan-Cole 
2nd: Penny Love-Henslee 

8:46 PM 

Adjournment     

Approved: 

8:46 PM 

 
 

   

Kristy Morgan, Chair  Date 
   
   
   

Megan Dugan, Vice Chair  Date 
 

Page 17 of 92



 Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 
 Staff Report 2023-24 

 Finance Commi�ee Report 

 TO:  Board of Trustees 
 FROM:  Finance Commi�ee,  Amelia Shelley 
 DATE:  5/15/2023 
 SUBJECT:  Fee Forgiveness for Minors at 18 

 Summary  : 
 Minors under 18 years of age need a parental signature in order to get a Full Access library account 
 which allows them to check out up to 50 items. Minors unable to get a parent to accompany them to the 
 library to provide permission are able to get a Limited account that only allows them to check out 3 
 items at a �me. This limits the financial liability for both the parents and the library should the minor not 
 return the materials. 

 Minors are not allowed to enter into a contract so responsibility for the return of items ul�mately rests 
 with the parents. Because the use of their library account may not be fully in their control as a minor, we 
 would like to give 18 year olds a “clean slate” with the library by removing bills for past due/lost 
 materials when minors turn 18 years old. We would then change their library account to a Limited 
 account un�l the 18 year old visits the library and confirms their own adult responsibility for their 
 account. 

 Staff recommenda�on: 
 Approve Resolu�on 2023-11 to allow staff to waive fines when a minor reaches age 18 and requests an 
 adult privileges card. 

 Staff will run monthly reports to iden�fy cardholders who have turned 18 since the last report was run, 
 and who have fees on their account for lost/damaged items. Those fees would then be waived and staff 
 would convert their library account to Limited status. This limited status would remain un�l the person 
 visits a library branch and takes adult responsibility for their own account by showing ID and reques�ng a 
 full access account. 

Page 18 of 92



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY 
RESOLUTION: 2023-11 

FINE FORGIVENESS FOR MINORS AT 18 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES DECLARING FINE FORGIVENESS FOR MINORS AT 18 

 

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

(FVRL) was held on Monday, May 15, 2023 at the Stevenson Community Library and attended by 

a quorum of the Board of Trustees for the conduct of such business; and, after due consideration 

and deliberation, the following resolution was duly passed by a majority vote of all Trustees 

attending. 

 

WHEREAS, the FVRL Board of Trustees has authorized the imposition of fines when library 

materials are damaged or lost; and 

 

WHEREAS, patrons are responsible for materials checked out on their cards after the loss or theft; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Library Privileges Policy requires that library cards for minors have parental 

authorization; and  

 

WHEREAS, debt incurred by minors in Washington state is the responsibility of their parents or 

legal guardians; and 

 

WHEREAS, if a minor’s parents have failed to pay off debts incurred by minors when they reach 

the age of recognized adulthood in Washington of eighteen (18); and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: that Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

Resolution 2023-11, approving the Fee Forgiveness for Minors at 18 to be adopted. 

 

 

 

Approved:   
 Chair, Kristy Morgan 

 

Attested:   

 Vice Chair, Megan Dugan 

 

Date:   

Page 19 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Staff Report 2023-27

Finance Report - City of Ridgefield Tax Increment Finance Area

TO: FVRL Board of Trustees

FROM: Amelia Shelley, Executive Director

DATE: 05/15/2023

SUBJECT: Impacts to FVRL from the formation of Tax Increment Finance Areas

Summary: The City of Ridgefield (City) has proposed a Local Tax Increment Finance Area (LTIF) to be used

to finance public improvements on their I5 corridor properties. The City estimates that the total cost of

public projects is $95M in today's dollars and total debt service on the bonds to fund those projects will

be $74M (including the cost of interest payments). The TIA is estimated to generate $200M of total tax

revenue over 25 years to pay for that debt service, with the remainder of the debt service being covered

by the City’s existing property tax levy authority.

The City’s plans include:

● Widen Royle Road (45th Avenue) to minor arterial (3 lanes)

● Build N 5th Street or Pioneer Canyon Drive as industrial/commercial collector

● Build N 51st Avenue as industrial/commercial collector (3 lanes)

● Build N 56th Avenue as industrial/commercial collector (3 lanes)

● Build S 51st Avenue as minor arterial (3 lanes)

● Build a roundabout at 51st Ave and widen Pioneer to a 4 lane boulevard with

center median and multi-modal improvements. Include storm water system and

water system improvements.

● Build new east-west collector roadway south of Pioneer Street (SR 501) (2 lanes)

● Regional Stormwater Facility – I-5 Interchange

● North-South connector east of I-5

● Build S10th /11th Street Corridor and I-5 overcrossing

Tax Increment Financing

In 2021, Washington passed legislation which allows local government - defined as cities, towns,

counties, port districts, or any combination thereof – to create Local Tax Increment Finance (LTIF) areas

to fund public improvements. The resulting 39.114 RCW impacts cities, counties and other taxing

districts by capturing the increment of property value growth due those entities over a set period of time

or amount of tax collections. It excludes any property taxes imposed by school districts, excess school

levies, state support for schools, public utilities, and existing bond financing. Library Districts are not

protected from this loss.

A Tax Increment Area (TIA) is property identified by a county, city or port district that requires public

improvements to allow for development. The taxing entity creates the TIA as a means to leverage the

Page 20 of 92

https://ridgefieldwa.us/tia/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.114


increasing value of new or existing taxable property to service the debt created by the LTIF. The

governmental entity creating the LTIF is able to retain the new increment of taxes on identified

properties that would have previously gone to other taxing agencies. LTIFS are used to pay for public

projects and service the associated debt on limited tax general obligation bonds (LTGO).

Once the LTIF has been paid off, any additional funds collected must be returned to the County Treasurer

for distribution to the taxing entities impacted by the TIA.

Key points on Local Tax Increment Financing Areas:

● Limited to 20% of jurisdiction’s TAV

● Limit of two TIFs per jurisdiction (max $200,000,000)

● No modifications once created

● Less than 5 years to perform improvements, up to 25 years for debt service

● Anticipates private development and increasing values

● Uses levies of overlapping taxing districts to determine amount

● Calculated on base amount of TAV for property

Impacts
The main impact to FVRL is foregone property tax revenues - future increases to the base value of the
property. Those lost revenues (as estimated by the City) are approximately $4M over 25 years.

Key points:

● Targeted properties currently assessed at $ TAV
● Loss to FVRL starts low, ends @ approx. $K a year
● Includes any future levy lid lifts

● Ends when debt is paid off or 25 years, whichever comes first

● Development less likely to occur or happen as quickly without the investment

● City assumes risk if TAV does not rise as anticipated over time

● Benefits jobs, sales tax revenues, economic development

● Allows the City to finance needed infrastructure for future development

Staff recommendation

TIF projects are bound to become more common as a financing tool and it is not something FVRL can

control. It will complicate our levy calculations to some degree. Time will tell how much it impacts our

overall growth potential. I encourage the Board to attend one of the City’s public informational sessions

to learn more. The first Public Briefing should be scheduled for mid-June, but no date is available at this

time.

Page 21 of 92



 Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 
 Staff Report 2023-25 
 Facility Commi�ee 

 TO: Board of Trustees 
 FROM:  Amelia Shelley, Execu�ve Director 
 DATE:  5/15/2023 
 SUBJECT: Vancouver Parking Agreement 

 SUMMARY: 
 The Vancouver Community Library is a unique property as FVRL owns the footprint of the building plus 
 five feet around the perimeter. Beyond that, the remaining property that contains library walkways, 
 lawns and parking is owned by Evergreen Investments. Evergreen sold the original property to FVRL in 
 2008 and has allowed FVRL to use the adjacent proper�es to provide an a�rac�ve se�ng for the library 
 as well as public parking. The City of Vancouver has a lease agreement with Evergreen Investments to 
 maintain the parking lot. The City also polices the lot to keep people from parking there for more than 
 two hours. 

 The City of Vancouver has approached FVRL about revising the exis�ng parking lot lease for the 
 Vancouver Community Library. This property is currently owned by Evergreen Investments and leased to 
 the City of Vancouver. The City manages the lot and ensures that users do not park in the lot longer than 
 two hours at a �me and that no vehicles are abandoned. They also maintain the paving and striping of 
 the lot as well as repair any light fixtures that are burned out. 

Page 22 of 92



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION: 2023-12    

 
RESOLUTION OF THE FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 

NEGOTIATE AND FINALIZE A WAIVER OF A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL WITH 

THE CITY OF VANCOUVER. 

 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library was held on Monday, 

May 15, 2023 at the Stevenson Community Library, attended by a quorum of the Board of 

Trustees for the conduct of such business; and, after due consideration and deliberation, the 

following resolution was duly passed by a majority vote of all Trustees attending. 

 

WHEREAS, FVRL Supplemental Development Agreement by and between Evergreen and the 

City dated effective April 6, 2009 regarding certain real property located at Evergreen Boulevard 

and C Street in Clark County, Vancouver, Washington also known as Library Square, and  

 

WHEREAS, Evergreen and the City of Vancouver (City) are parties to that certain Supplemental 

Development Agreement by and between Evergreen and the City dated effective April 6, 2009 

(“Supplemental DA”) regarding certain real property known as Library Square, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Supplemental DA references a Memorandum of Understanding Regarding 

Interim Parking Facility dated December 30, 2008 entered into by FVRL and Evergreen (“FVRL 

Parking MOU”), which contemplates the potential use of an Interim Parking Facility, as defined 

therein, on the Property for a substantial number of years;  

 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to enter into a Purchase and Sale Agreement which contemplates 

Buyer’s acquisition of the Property from Seller (“Purchase Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Supplemental DA, the FVRL Parking MOU, and other agreements relating to the 

Property contemplate FVRL having a right to acquire a certain area of the Property designated as 

the Onsite Parking portion and, as described herein, any rights granted to FVRL for the Property 

(“FVRL Rights”) which must be waived or satisfied as a closing contingency of the Purchase 

Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, at or before Closing (as defined 

therein), the City must be satisfied in writing that the FVRL Rights have been waived or fulfilled 

with respect to the Property and that no outstanding property rights held by FVRL or any other 

entity encumber the Property unless expressly permitted by City, provided that any formal 

modification to FVRL Rights prior to Closing is subject to approval by Evergreen; and 

 

WHEREAS, FVRL benefits from entering into this Limited Waiver because it desires to retain the 

FVRL Rights but not acquire any of the Property now and Evergreen and City benefit from this 

Limited Waiver by fulfilling the FVRL Rights contingency to Closing the Purchase Agreement; 

and 

 

Page 23 of 92



WHEREAS, for purposes of facilitating the Purchase Agreement and allowing the sale of the 

Property from Evergreen to the City, FVRL is willing to provide a limited waiver of 

the FVRL Rights solely with respect to the transaction contemplated by the Purchase Agreement. 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of FVRL is the authorized representative of the District and 

may negotiate and finalize the Limited Waiver with the City of Vancouver on the property.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver 

Regional Library District authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate and finalize a Right of 

First Refusal Limited Waiver agreement with the City of Vancouver. 

 

Adopted this 15th day of May 2023 

 

 

Approved:   

 Kristy Morgan, Chair 

 

Attested:   

 Megan Dugan, Vice Chair 

 

Page 24 of 92



 Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 
 Staff Report 2023-26 

 TO:  Board of Trustees 
 FROM:  Amelia Shelley 
 DATE:  5/15/2023 
 SUBJECT:  Personnel Handbook (second reading) and Founda�on  Policy (new) 

 Summary: 
 FVRL’s last update to its Personnel Handbook was made mid-2017. There are a number of updates in the 
 revised version rela�ng to changes in workplace prac�ces (a�re, personal property, telecommu�ng, 
 visitors, social media, FVRL-issued electronic devices, benefits, compensa�on, leave, privacy, personal 
 visitors and emergencies. It also describes the different parameters for represented and non-represented 
 staff concerning trial service periods, and terms for serving as the Person In Charge (PIC) in certain 
 situa�ons. 

 There was discussion at the April Board mee�ng concerning the inclusion of the American Library 
 Associa�on Code of Ethics, which has been in prior versions of the handbook under the Professional 
 Ethics sec�on on page 4. The revised Personnel Handbook includes a new ninth passage that was added 
 by ALA in 2021  concerning racial and social jus�ce  .  There was also a discussion of FVRL’s pronoun 
 bu�ons and whether or not that cons�tuted poli�cal paraphernalia and the need to include the 
 language from the District’s Equity Policy on page 12. No other changes to the current text were 
 men�oned. 

 No other comments from Board members were received between the April and May mee�ng, and the 
 Policy Commi�ee was unable to meet prior to the May Board mee�ng. 

 Ac�on: 
 None at this �me, as this is a second reading of this revised policy. Please provide feedback to members 
 of the Policy Commi�ee (Morgan, Hodges, Dugan) or to the Execu�ve Director. 

 SUBJECT: Library/Founda�on Policy 

 Summary 
 The Board has requested that some of the aspects of the Founda�on’s rela�onship with FVRL be codified 
 in policy rather than solely through a memorandum of understanding. 

 Founda�on History 
 FVRL’s Founda�on was formed to address the need for a 501(c)3 to apply for certain types of grants. 

Page 25 of 92

https://www.ala.org/news/member-news/2021/07/ala-adopts-new-code-ethics-principle-racial-and-social-justice


 Ini�ally, the Founda�on was a part of FVRL and its employees worked for the District. In 1996, the 
 Founda�on became a separate en�ty and formed a corpora�on for that purpose. It’s stated mission is: 

 The Fort Vancouver Regional Library Founda�on aims to strengthen and enhance the Fort Vancouver 
 Regional Library District's capacity to dynamically serve its communi�es. We engage with these 
 communi�es to promote literacy, communicate the value of the Library, and inspire civic support. We also 
 seek and welcome gi�s to expand Library facili�es, programs and services. Our vision is to be a leading 
 library founda�on. We strive to build public and private ini�a�ves that provide opportuni�es to enrich 
 life-long learning throughout our community. 

 In the nearly thirty years of its existence, the Founda�on has supported FVRL through numerous ways 
 including securing grants for capital projects, crea�ng opportuni�es for donors to support their libraries 
 and helping the Friend of the Libraries in their philanthropic efforts to assist their local branch. While this 
 partnership has been successful, it has not been without its challenges. A resistance to open and 
 frequent communica�on has created a rela�onship that lacks trust. 

 Memorandum of Understanding 
 Since 1995, FVRL and the Founda�on have operated under a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
 that should be renewed every five years. It is intended to serve as a contractual agreement between the 
 two organiza�ons dicta�ng how they will work together and support each other's efforts. The current 
 MOU was last updated in 2015 and is overdue for an update. 

 One of the key provisions of the MOU is that FVRL should expect to receive from the Founda�on funds 
 equal to or greater than the amount of support the Founda�on receives from FVRL in the form of office 
 space, u�li�es, staff support, vehicles and more. Another requirement of the MOU is that the 
 Founda�on should provide annual fundraising and financial reports to FVRL. These reports have not 
 been forthcoming, even when requested by the District. 

 The Founda�on and FVRL are unable at this �me to agree to new terms with the MOU, so the agreement 
 remains in status quo. The inability to agree on new terms is indica�ve of the strain in the rela�onship 
 and nearly a year of mee�ngs between representa�ves of the two Boards of Trustees has failed to yield 
 any progress. It is the belief of the District that there is no interest for the Founda�on to come to an 
 agreement, and that there is, in fact, an effort to reduce what li�le transparency currently exists. It is in 
 the best interest of both organiza�ons to rise above any pe�y personal grudges and work together to 
 ensure the future success of the libraries. 

 Policy 
 FVRL uses policies to define the parameters within which the organiza�on operates to provide staff with 
 guidance based on the law and the best interests of the communi�es we serve. FVRL has two current 
 policies that address its rela�onship to the Founda�on -  Gi�s and Recogni�on  and  Gi� of Art  Policies. 
 However, neither of these policies define the rela�onship between the two organiza�ons. 

Page 26 of 92



 FVRL’s Board of Trustees has the ability to create new policy to assist the District in its work and there is 
 interest in crea�ng a policy that might provide direc�on for FVRL’s rela�onship to the Founda�on. 
 Without the ability to finalize a new MOU, it stands to reason that a policy may be the faster way to 
 solve these concerns. 

 Ac�on 
 None at this �me. Staff expects the Board’s Policy Commi�ee and the Founda�on MOU Commi�ee to 
 work jointly on crea�ng this new policy in the coming month. Staff hopes to have it before the Board for 
 a first reading in June. 

Page 27 of 92



Page 28 of 92



Page 29 of 92



Page 30 of 92



Page 31 of 92



Page 32 of 92



Page 33 of 92



Page 34 of 92



Page 35 of 92



Page 36 of 92



Page 37 of 92



Page 38 of 92



Page 39 of 92



Page 40 of 92



Page 41 of 92



Page 42 of 92



Page 43 of 92



Page 44 of 92



Page 45 of 92



Page 46 of 92



Page 47 of 92



Page 48 of 92



Page 49 of 92



Page 50 of 92



Page 51 of 92



Page 52 of 92



Page 53 of 92



Page 54 of 92



Page 55 of 92



Page 56 of 92



Page 57 of 92



Page 58 of 92



Page 59 of 92



Page 60 of 92



Page 61 of 92



Page 62 of 92



Page 63 of 92



Page 64 of 92



Page 65 of 92



Page 66 of 92



Page 67 of 92



Page 68 of 92



Page 69 of 92



Page 70 of 92



Page 71 of 92



Page 72 of 92



Page 73 of 92



Page 74 of 92



Page 75 of 92



Page 76 of 92



Page 77 of 92



Page 78 of 92



Page 79 of 92



Page 80 of 92



Page 81 of 92



 DRAFT 
 Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

 Library/Foundation Policy 

 Purpose 
 The intent of this policy is to create a clear statement of expectations between the Fort 
 Vancouver Regional Library District (Library) Library and the Fort Vancouver Regional Library 
 Foundation (Foundation)  to  that applies to  the Library  Board of Trustees’  fiscal oversight of the 
 Distric  t. The Library and Foundation each have separate  roles in fundraising, but need to work 
 with each other to accomplish the goal of promoting the general welfare of the  libraries  . 

 Policy 
 The Library and the Foundation will collaborate, through their respective authorized 
 representatives, to plan and execute comprehensive fundraising and donor acquisition 
 programs in support of the Library’s mission.  The  following provisions are intended to provide 
 clarity of intent for both organizations to maintain a successful and productive relationship while 
 meeting the Library’s annual objectives for fundraising. 

 ●  The Foundation Board of Trustees  shall be  responsible  for the control and management 
 of all assets of the Foundation, including the prudent management of all gifts  to it 
 consistent with donor intent and applicable laws. The Foundation shall remain a 
 separately incorporated 501(c)3 non-profit for the purpose of raising funds, accepting 
 gifts and writing grants  on the Library’s behalf  . 

 ●  The Library Executive Director and  the Board of  Trustee  Foundation Liaison will serve on 
 the Foundation’s Board of Trustees as  Ex Officio (  non-voting  )  members. 

 ●  The Foundation  shall  exclusively  own  their donor database  and  be  responsible for its 
 maintenance. 

 ●  The Foundation  shall be  responsible for communicating  long-term plans, as approved by 
 their Board of Trustees, to the Library’s Executive Director and  the FVRL  Board of 
 Trustees. 

 ●  The  Library  Executive Director shall communicate priorities  and long-term plans as 
 approved by the FVRL Board of Trustees to the Foundation. 

 ●  When the Foundation has accepted an award  Grants applied  for and accepted on behalf 
 of  the Library  ,  and has a duty to report on that award,  the Foundation will share financial 
 and donor information pertinent to that award with the  shall be shared  with Library staff 
 responsible for grant administration  prior to submission  . 

 ●  The Library and Foundation shall provide data to each other as a part of collaborative 
 fundraising efforts.  Library relationship to the Foundation 

Page 82 of 92



 DRAFT 
 ●  The Library shall provide  documentation  proof  of compliance  to  any  donor restrictions 

 upon requesting reimbursement  from the Foundation  after  the funds have been 
 expended  accepted  . 

 ●  The Library will provide services to the Foundation when  requested  presented  with  in  a 
 timely  manner  request  .  The Foundation will follow  the Library’s timelines when 
 requesting use of any Library staff-supplied services.  The Library and Foundation will 
 agree in advance for the compensation of such services. 

 ●  The Library retains the right to use an internal or external fundraising organization for 
 special projects. It will inform the Foundation of such engagements,  to prevent the 
 Foundation from  pursuing  any further effort for  the  same opportunities. 

 ●  The Library Board of Trustees shall approve  any other  outside  organizations that are 
 used for fundraising purposes. 

 ●  The Library retains the right to apply for any and all available government, public, or 
 private grants. 

 ●  The Library reserves the right to restrict use of its name and logo by the Foundation, and 
 can revoke it at any time. 

 ADMINISTRATION 
 The Executive Director is responsible for the administration of this policy, for establishing 
 administrative procedures for its implementation and for making the policy available for the 
 public at each branch and via the Library’s web site. 

 SEVERABILITY 
 The Board hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy are declared to be 
 separate and severable. The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, 
 chapter, title or other portion of this policy, or the invalidity of the application thereof to any 
 person or circumstance shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the policy, or the validity 
 of its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 CONTINUANCE 
 The Board hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy shall be construed and 
 applied as a continuation of the provisions of the policy, as amended, insofar as applicable, and 
 the repeal of any part of this policy shall not be construed as affecting such continuous 
 application. 

 Relevant policies: 

 References: 

 Approved by the Board of Trustees: 

Page 83 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Staff Report 2023-16

Board Responsibilities and Logistics

TO: FVRL Board of Trustees

FROM: Tak Kendrick, Director, Communications and Marketing Division

DATE: 05/15/23

SUBJECT: Board Media Communication Protocols

SUMMARY: From time-to-time reporters or other members of the media ask to talk to our Trustees

about the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL). The Board has requested an opportunity to

discuss FVRL’s internal procedures pertaining to such requests. As a reminder, the ability for the full

Board to discuss a media request before responding is not protected by Executive Session, and any

discussion involving more than three members constitutes a meeting.

BACKGROUND: Media requests for interviews with FVRL officials (including staff and Board) are generally

handled through the Communications and Marketing Department (CMD)’s relationships with the media.

Sometimes the media is requesting information about a story that CMD has been working with them on,

other times they are working on their own story separate from CMD’s marketing or relationship building.

Keep in mind that the media would prefer to talk to one or two representatives (as opposed to all seven

Board Members) and are frequently working on tight deadlines necessitating a quick decision and

turnaround.

While the media may ask to speak to whomever they want, historically, it has been FVRL and CMD’s

practice to connect them to spokespeople based on the story and staff/board roles and responsibilities.

Examples:

● Information about district or library operations, programs, or initiatives:

○ District-wide or related to multiple locations: Executive Director or their designees

(generally Deputy Director, Communications Director, or Administrative Directors)

○ Branch specific library operations or programs: Branch library management and/or

Executive Director (or their designees)

○ Board representation for “feel good” stories (eg. story about a new building or special

project at a location): Board Chair or Board Member representing that region

● Information about Board Policies or decisions, including setting of budget, policy decisions,

approval of union or Executive Director contracts, or real estate decisions:

○ If a specific Board Member(s) or representation is requested (eg. media asks for “Board

member from X county” or the “Board Treasurer”): Connect media to requested Board

member(s)

○ General questions or comment about Board policies/decisions: Board chair

● Information about Foundation or Friends of the Library: Handled through Foundation

Page 84 of 92



Please note: Members of the media may contact FVRL Board Members directly without making a request

through CMD – though this is infrequent, it is possible. In the event this happens, a best practice has been

for the Board Member to send a note to the Executive Director and CMD Director about the content of

the interview so that they may follow up as needed.

FOR DISCUSSION:

Board of Trustee Bylaws Section 4.10 states, The Board shall act as a body in making its decisions and

announcing them. No Trustee shall speak or act for the Board without prior authorization of the

Board, except as otherwise provided for in these bylaws. Further, in Bylaws section 5.2, the Executive

Director serves as the representative to the communities and the general public.

1. How does section 4.10 of the Bylaws get interpreted when it comes to media

communications?

2. Are there concerns about the procedures FVRL and the CMD Director have taken historically?

3. Should the Bylaws identify a Trustee as spokesperson (see examples below)?

4. Is there a recommendation for a different process for when the media requests to speak to a

Board Member?

5. Should the response depend on whether or not the issue is time or location sensitive?

Examples of other Washington Library Board Bylaw Policies:

Jefferson County Library District (see section 4.03)

Stevens County Library District (see section 3.2)

Page 85 of 92

https://thelosc.org/about-us/board-of-trustees/by-laws/
https://jclibrary.info/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/BOT-Bylaws-2019.pdf


Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Staff Report 2023-23

Public Comments at Board Meetings

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Amelia Shelley, Executive Director

DATE: 05/15/2023

SUBJECT: Public comment periods during Board meetings

Summary

At the last meeting there was a discussion about changing the public comment section of the Board

meetings to provide separate times for public comments pertaining to items on the agenda and public

comments for items NOT on the agenda. The recommendation was to potentially limit the time for each

and offer them at different times during the meeting. The Board requested an opportunity to discuss the

public comment section before making any changes.

Open Public Meetings Act

RCW 42.30 outlines state law pertaining to open public meetings. RCW 42.30.240 covers expectations

for providing opportunities for citizens to address the Board through public comments. The exact

language of the statute follows:

(1) Except in an emergency situation, the governing body of a public agency shall provide an opportunity

at or before every regular meeting at which final action is taken for public comment. The public

comment required under this section may be taken orally at a public meeting, or by providing an

opportunity for written testimony to be submitted before or at the meeting. If the governing body

accepts written testimony, this testimony must be distributed to the governing body. The governing body

may set a reasonable deadline for the submission of written testimony before the meeting.

(2) Upon the request of any individual who will have difficulty attending a meeting of the governing body

of a public agency by reason of disability, limited mobility, or for any other reason that makes physical

attendance at a meeting difficult, the governing body shall, when feasible, provide an opportunity for

that individual to provide oral comment at the meeting remotely if oral comment from other members

of the public will be accepted at the meeting.

(3) Nothing in this section prevents a governing body from allowing public comment on items not on the

meeting agenda.

(4) Nothing in this section diminishes the authority of governing bodies to deal with interruptions under

RCW 42.30.050, limits the ability of the governing body to put limitations on the time available for public

comment or on how public comment is accepted, or requires a governing body to accept public

comment that renders orderly conduct of the meeting unfeasible.

Page 86 of 92

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30.050
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30


Key Points

Public comments must be allowed at any meeting at which final action is taken.

Guidelines should be provided and expectations for submission should be reasonable.

If oral comments are being taken, accommodate anyone unable to attend the meeting in person.

Entities can choose to:

Allow for comments on items not on the agenda

Limit the amount of time allowed for comments

Accept comments in person or in writing (both are encouraged)

Require orderly conduct during the public comment period

Recommendations

Staff suggests that the Board identifies their goals for taking public comment. Determine the timing to

ensure that it is equitable for those who are interested in speaking. As comments on items that are on

the agenda seem more valuable to hear BEFORE a decision is made, it seems reasonable to allow those

comments at the start of the meeting and save comments for items NOT on the agenda for the end.

Some questions to consider:

As it is typical to have the comments last up to an hour for items NOT on the agenda, will the Board hear

from everyone interested in speaking?

Will speakers be offered a form to fill out or other mechanism to express their opinions?

If there are no speakers wishing to address items on the agenda, will the Board move to the next item on

the agenda?

Page 87 of 92



2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
Battle Ground Community Library 40,382 44,364 -8.98% 170,595 172,472 -1.09%
Cascade Park Community Library 62,067 68,622 -9.55% 253,706 254,714 -0.40%
La Center Community Library 5,591 6,881 -18.75% 23,957 26,264 -8.78%
Ridgefield Community Library 9,423 9,221 2.19% 39,093 36,449 7.25%
Three Creeks Community Library 46,178 46,461 -0.61% 190,740 179,058 6.52%
Vancouver Community Library 64,336 56,501 13.87% 233,466 214,233 8.98%
Vancouver Mall Library 10,718 11,886 -9.83% 46,403 46,316 0.19%
Washougal Community Library 7,953 7,880 0.93% 32,849 30,988 6.01%
Green Mountain Library Express 256 190 34.74% 985 855 15.20%
Yacolt Library Express 4,591 4,724 -2.82% 19,426 19,342 0.43%
LibCabinet at Vancouver Mall 0 5 100.00% 0 0 100.00%

Clark County Total 251,495 256,730 -2.04% 1,011,220 980,691 3.11%
Woodland Community Library 5,190 5,212 -0.42% 22,370 19,832 12.80%
Yale Library Express 944 779 21.18% 3,920 2,940 33.33%

Cowlitz County Total 6,134 5,991 2.39% 26,290 22,772 15.45%
Goldendale Community Library 6,056 6,774 -10.60% 27,493 24,950 10.19%
White Salmon Valley Community Library 9,752 10,084 -3.29% 41,683 40,579 2.72%
Klickitat County Bookmobile 1,147 1,061 8.11% 4,807 4,299 11.82%

Klickitat County Total 16,955 17,919 -5.38% 73,983 69,828 5.95%
North Bonneville Community Library 364 298 1,743 1,541 13.11%
Stevenson Community Library 3,981 4,582 -13.12% 18,294 17,532 4.35%
Skamania County Bookmobile 997 1,072 -7.00% 4,014 4,455 -9.90%

Skamania County Total 5,342 5,952 -10.25% 24,051 23,528 2.22%
District-wide renewals 264 116 127.59% 943 494 90.89%
Mail 1,126 1,008 11.71% 5,187 4,564 13.65%
InterLibrary Loan Materials 343 -100.00% 1,076 1,181 -8.89%

Misc Total 1,390 1,467 -5.25% 7,206 6,239 15.50%
Downloadable eBooks 62,046 53,652 15.65% 250,184 220,261 13.59%
eMagazines 1,447 1,913 -24.36% 5,990 7,273 -17.64%
Downloadable & streaming audiobooks 64,491 52,132 23.71% 254,407 205,966 23.52%
Downloadable & streaming music 24,309 16,870 44.10% 92,112 72,864 26.42%
Streaming video 8,813 8,456 4.22% 35,791 32,847 8.96%

eContent Total 161,106 133,023 21.11% 638,484 539,211 18.41%

TOTAL 442,422 421,082 5.07% 1,781,234 1,642,269 8.46%

April Circulation YTD Circulation

Page 88 of 92



1/2

ClarkCountyToday.com April 14, 2023

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District’s executive
director to retire

clarkcountytoday.com/news/fort-vancouver-regional-library-districts-executive-director-to-retire

Amelia Shelley

 

Amelia Shelley received significant public scrutiny in recent years
for her support of Drag Queen Story Hour programs

After nearly eight years leading Fort Vancouver Community Libraries (FVRLibraries), Amelia

Shelley has announced she will retire as executive director this summer. 

Hired in 2015 as successor to retiring director Nancy Tessman, highlights of Shelley’s tenure

at FVRLibraries include:

Increased emphasis and access to electronic books, materials and resources throughout

the library district

Increased visibility for the public library through community partnerships, outreach

and rebranding

Completion of a $3.6 million remodel and new construction project at Ridgefield

Community Library

Page 89 of 92

https://www.clarkcountytoday.com/news/fort-vancouver-regional-library-districts-executive-director-to-retire/


2/2

Completion of a $1 million self-service library in Yale as part of FVRLibraries’

partnership with Yale Valley Library District

Planning for new library facilities in Woodland, Washougal and Brush Prairie,

including a groundbreaking for a new Woodland Community Library this June

Development and delivery of two new bookmobiles to provide service to rural

communities

Overseeing pandemic-related changes to keep library services in communities,

including curbside pickup options, virtual programs, a dedicated library mobile app,

and increased safety precautions

Shelley also received significant public scrutiny in recent years for her support of Drag Queen

Story Hour programs at Fort Vancouver Regional Library. The programs featured adults

dressed as Drag Queens reading to young children.

Shelley sees the next few months as a time to wrap things up while also leaving the district in

good condition for the new executive director. 

“I’m proud of all our libraries have accomplished and I believe the District is positioned for

continued success. We have some exciting projects underway — including new facilities to

serve the communities of Woodland, Washougal and Brush Prairie — that I’m particularly

excited about and I can’t wait to visit them as a library patron,” she said. “I look forward to

seeing FVRLibraries continue to be a trusted community resource and a place where

everyone feels valued and welcome. I’m also excited for my own next chapter and look

forward to watching our libraries thrive in southwest Washington.”

Shelley’s over 25-year career as a library administrator includes almost eight years as

executive director of Garfield County Public Library District in Colorado and 10 years as

Youth and Outreach Services manager at Laramie County Library in Cheyenne, Wyoming.

As for next steps for the library district, the FVRLibraries Board of Trustees is planning to

launch a national search to find Shelley’s successor. They intend to make an announcement

about recruitment in the coming weeks.

Shelley’s last day with FVRLibraries will be July 31, 2023.

Information in this report was provided by Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries.

 

 

Page 90 of 92



1/2

Small Business Month Logo

Vancouver celebrates Small Business Month in May
cityofvancouver.us/eph/page/vancouver-celebrates-small-business-month-may-0

On Monday, May 1, Vancouver Mayor Anne

McEnerny-Ogle will proclaim the month of May

“Small Business Month” in Vancouver. The

designation coincides with National Small Business

Month and National Small Business Week (April 30 –

May 6). 

“Small businesses are the heart of our City’s economy,

representing more than 95 percent of our

businesses, and we must work to ensure that our City

grows not only from the top down, but also from the

bottom up and the middle out,” said Mayor Anne

McEnerny-Ogle. “Small Business Month invites

residents and visitors to support the continued recovery of our small business community as

we emerge from the pandemic and work through other economic hardships.”

Also, in observance of Small Business Month, the City is teaming up with the Vancouver

Community Library to co-host Connect and Navigate, on Thursday, May 11 from 3 to 6 p.m.

at the Vancouver Community Library, 901 C Street. This small business resource fair will

feature a variety of local resources to help:

Grow your small business

Find resources for every stage of your business venture

Meet advisers, business counselors and learn about available services – all in one place

Throughout the month of May, the City and its partners will showcase local small business

stories, share ways for the community to support small businesses and promote

opportunities for entrepreneurs, startups and existing small businesses to grow and thrive in

Vancouver. Follow the hashtag #CouveSmallBiz and visit the City of Vancouver on Facebook,

Instagram or LinkedIn to watch, learn and stay informed. 

The City is committed to supporting the growth of its small business community by removing

barriers to success and bolstering a thriving local economy through programs such as:

Business assistance:  Awarded $278,000 for business microenterprise education and

technical assistance, including business license/certification programs, microloans, and

credit repair in 2022.  An additional $470,000 in business assistance funding is

proposed for similar business needs in 2023.

Page 91 of 92

https://www.cityofvancouver.us/sites/default/files/styles/gallery500/public/imageattachments/economic_prosperity_and_housing/page/82976/small_business_month_-_2023_logo.png?itok=uDMALKe4
https://www.linkedin.com/company/city-of-vancouver-washington/
https://www.cityofvancouver.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_prosperity_and_housing/page/76131/2022_approved_pre-application_project_summary_11.17.2021.pdf
http://www.facebook.com/vancouverus
http://www.instagram.com/vancouverus
https://www.cityofvancouver.us/eph/page/vancouver-celebrates-small-business-month-may-0


2/2

Pre-Lease Program:  A free one-hour informational meeting and tour within the

commercial space that a business owner or property owner wants to

buy/lease/renovate with all the experts in the room. Learn what’s needed for the space

– before buying, investing or signing a lease - from various City departments like

permitting, sewer, engineering, building, Fire Marshal, Clark County Public Health,

land use, parking, and more.

Procurement - Doing Business with the City: A program that publicly advertises bid

opportunities offering businesses the ability to fulfill the city’s needs for goods, services,

construction/public improvement projects, and professional/technical assistance. An

interactive website invites businesses to submit bids, quotes, and proposals

competitively. This service offers businesses a unique solution to filling their project

pipelines, adding to their expanded growth and sales.

Restaurant Start-Up Guide: A simple eight-step guide detailing what permits, licensing,

plans and inspections are needed before opening a restaurant within city limits. A

useful tool that expedites the research, learning and discovery process for

restaurateurs.

Explore more services, business education and resource opportunities.

 
 

 

 

Page 92 of 92

https://www.cityofvancouver.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_prosperity_and_housing/page/17196/pre-lease_program_english.pdf
https://www.cityofvancouver.us/eph/page/may-small-business-month-vancouver
https://www.cityofvancouver.us/eph/page/restaurant-guide
https://www.cityofvancouver.us/fms/page/doing-business-city-vancouver-0
https://cityofvancouver.bonfirehub.com/login

